

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

CLOUD VIRTUALIZATION FRAMEWORKS

Assignment 1 Designing and Implementing a Cloud Solution

Adelo Vieira Student Number: 2017279

Lecturer: Greg South

May 11, 2020

Contents

1	Tecl	hnical solution	1	
	1.1	Creating a VPC	1	
	1.2 Subnet architecture			
		1.2.1 Availability zone 1	2	
		1.2.1.1 Public subnet 1	2	
		1.2.1.2 Private Web-Tiers subnet $1 \dots $	3	
		1.2.1.3 Private App-Tiers subnet $1 \ldots $	4	
		1.2.2 Replication of the subnet architecture in a second AZ $\ldots \ldots \ldots$	5	
	1.3	Defining Servers Security Groups	6	
	1.4	Launching a Web and App tiers instances and configuring the Web application $\ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots$	6	
	1.5	Creating Amazon Machine Images for the Web-Tier and App-Tier instances	7	
	1.6	Load Balancing	8	
	1.7	Auto Scaling	8	
	1.8	Database tier	9	
	1.9	Storing Web-Accessible Content in Amazon S3	9	
	1.10	Caching with Amazon CloudFront	9	
2	Arc	hitecture diagram	11	
3	Imp	elementation of a proof of concept solution	13	
	3.1	Creating a VPC	14	
		3.1.1 Configuring the VPC's ACL	15	
	3.2	Subnet architecture	16	
		3.2.1 Adding a target to the IGW in the public-named subnets to make them really publics \ldots \ldots \ldots	18	
	3.3	Creating a NAT Gateway in each Public subnet	20	
	3.4	Creating 2 new private route tables	20	
	3.5	Defining Servers Security Groups	22	

	3.6	Launching a Web and App tiers instances and configuring the Web application	23
		3.6.1 Launching the instances	23
		3.6.2 Accessing the instance using SSH and Installing the necessary packages	25
		3.6.3 Uploading the web app and testing it	27
	3.7	Creating Amazon Machine Images for the Web-Tier and App-Tier instances	28
	3.8	Load Balancing	30
	3.9	Auto Scaling	32
	3.10	Storing Web-Accessible Content in Amazon S3	33
	3.11	Caching with Amazon CloudFront	35
	3.12	Cross-region disaster recovery	36
		3.12.0.1 Data replication	36
4	Pro	posed solution report	37

Bibliography

40

List of Figures

1.1	ACL for the VPC	2
1.2	Security Groups for the EC2 Instance (Web and App tiers servers)	6
1.3	Security Groups for the Aurora DB	9
2.1	Architecture diagram	12

Task 1

Technical solution

1.1 Creating a VPC

First, we need to create a Virtual Private Cloud (VPC). A VPC is an Amazon Service that allows us to define a Virtual Network¹ where we can launch AWS resources, such as EC2 Instances.

The VPC will have the follosing features:

• **Region:** Europe (Ireland)

We have chosen this region because the largest part of our users is in Ireland.

• Inter-Domain Routing (CIDR) block - IP range: 10.100.0.0/20

This VPC includes 4,094 IPs between 10.100.0.1 and 10.100.15.254 (with some reserved).

• Route table: When you create a VPC, a routing table is automatically generated with a target to the Internet Gateway:

Destination	Target	
10.100.0.0/20	Local	
0.0.0.0/0	IGW	

• ACL: We only need HTTP/HTTPS and SSH traffic. The following ACL will allow only inbound and outbound HTTP and HTTPS traffic from any IPv4 address. It also allows inbound SSH since we will need to remotely access

 $^{^{1}\}mathrm{A}$ virtual network can be defined as a logically isolated section of the Amazon Web Services cloud

to our Linux instances via SSH. We haven't allowed RDP traffic because our environment will be based only on Linux instance.

ACL for the VDS

ACE IOI THE VES			
Inbound			
Туре	Port	Source	Allow/Deny
HTTP	80	0.0.0.0/0	Allow
HTTPS	433	0.0.0.0/0	Allow
SSH	22	192.0.1.0/24*	Allow

Outbound			
Туре	Port	Destination	Allow/Deny
HTTP	80	0.0.0.0/0	Allow
HTTPS	433	0.0.0.0/0	Allow

* Network from which we will access our VPC

Figure 1.1: ACL for the VPC. Notice that the source allows for SSH need to match the network from which we will access our VPC.

1.2 Subnet architecture

Now, in our VPC, we will be able to define our subnet architecture for high availability. Essentially, we will define 3 subnets that will be used to host our web and app servers. These 3 subnets will be created in a first availability zone and then replicated to another availability zone.

1.2.1 Availability zone 1

1.2.1.1 Public subnet 1

We need a subnet that has a direct connection to the Internet gateway (a public subnet). This is necessary because our servers will need Internet access for patching and updates.

It is important to notice that we won't lanch Instance in this subnet or any other public subnet. Instead, we will launch a **NAT Gateway** that will connect our Instance located in a **private subnet** with the Internet Gateway. The **NAT Gateway** will be provisioned with an Elastic IP Address (EIP). "An Elastic IP address will remain unchanged over the life of the NAT Gateway". [AWS Academy (2019a)]

Avoiding launching Instance in a public subnet is a security measure that makes sure that our servers are not exposed to direct Internet access.

Features:

• IP range (IPv4 CIDR block): 10.100.1.0/24

This subnet includes 254 IPs^2 between 10.100.0.1 and 10.100.0.254

• Public Route Table:

A Route Table defines how traffic flows into and out of a Subnet.

When you create a Subnet, it will be provided with a default Route Table, but this Route Table does not have a connection to your Internet gateway. You will change it to use the Public Route Table.

Local traffic: The first entry specifies that traffic destined within the VPC's CIDR range (10.100.0.0/20) will be routed within the VPC (*local*).

Internet Gateway: This specifies that any traffic destined for the Internet (0.0.0.0/0) is routed to the Internet Gateway (igw-). This setting makes it a Public Subnet. That is to say, because we have a Route Table that has a connection to our Internet gateway, then, Public Subnet 1 is now Public, which means it can communicate directly with the Internet.

Destination	Target
10.100.1.0/24	Local
0.0.0.0/0	IGW

• ACL: The ACL of the VPN (Figure 1.1)

1.2.1.2 Private Web-Tiers subnet 1

In this private subnet we will deploy our **Web** Tiers Instances.

²Notice that some of these IPs are reserved and unusable

As we already mentioned, the application will be hosted in private subnets. This way, we improve security since no direct access from the Internet is possible. [AWS Academy (2019a)]

Features:

- Availability zone 1: eu-west-1
- IP range (IPv4 CIDR block): 10.100.3.0/24

Range: 10.100.3.1 - 10.100.3.254

• Private Route Table:

This route table will be in charge of sending Internet-bound traffic **through the NAT Gateway**.

Destination	Target
10.100.11.0/24	Local
0.0.0.0/0	NAT-1

• ACL: The ACL of the VPN (Figure 1.1)

1.2.1.3 Private App-Tiers subnet 1

In this private subnet we will deploy our \mathbf{App} Tiers Instances.

Features:

- Availability zone 1: eu-west-1
- IP range (IPv4 CIDR block): 10.100.5.0/24
- Private Route Table:

This route table will be in charge of sending Internet-bound traffic through Private App-Tiers subnet 1 > 1

NAT Gateway 1 > Internet Gateway.

Destination	Target
10.100.12.0/24	Local
0.0.0.0/0	NAT-1

ACL: The ACL of the VPN (Figure 1.1)

1.2.2 Replication of the subnet architecture in a second AZ

Amazon EC2 instances are not inherently highly available. They need to be provisioned in at least 2 different Availability zones to make our environment highly available. So, if a failure causes the interruption of one of the availability zones, our system will still be available through the second AZ. This is why we will replicate our subnet configuration in a second AZ:

- Public subnet 2:
 - IP range (IPv4 CIDR block): 10.100.2.0/24
 - ACL: The ACL of the VPN (Figure 1.1)
 - Public Route Table:

Destination	Target
10.100.0.0/20	Local
0.0.0.0/0	IGW

- Private Web-Tiers subnet 2:
 - IP range (IPv4 CIDR block): 10.100.4.0/24
 - ACL: The ACL of the VPN (Figure 1.1)
 - Public Route Table:

Destination	Target
10.100.0.0/20	Local
0.0.0.0/0	NAT-2

- Private App-Tiers subnet 2:
 - IP range (IPv4 CIDR block): 10.100.6.0/24

- ACL: The ACL of the VPN (Figure 1.1)
- Public Route Table:

Destination	Target	
10.100.0.0/20	Local	
0.0.0.0/0	NAT-2	

1.3 Defining Servers Security Groups

In Figure 1.3 we show the Security Groups that will be applied to our App-Tier Instance. The ones will be assigned to the Web-Tier Instances are the same but without the rule that allows outbound traffic on port 3306. This is because only the App-Tier servers will connect to the database.

Security g	roups	for the Web-tie	er servers	s Inbound			
Inbound				Туре	Port	Source	Allow/Deny
Туре	Port	Source	Allow/Deny	НТТР	80	10.100.3.0/24	Allow
HTTP	80	0.0.0.0/0	Allow			10.100.4.0/24	
HTTPS	443	0.0.0.0/0	Allow	HTTPS	443	10.100.3.0/24	Allow
SSH 22 192.0.1.0/24* Allow		SSH	22	192.0.1.0/24	Allow		
Outbound				Outbound			
Туре	Port	Destination	Allow/Deny	Tuno	Dort	Dectination	
НТТР	80	10.100.5.0/24 10.100.6.0/24	Allow	ТСР	3306	Aurora DB IP	Allow
иттре	133	10.100.5.0/24		HTTP	80	0.0.0.0/0	Allow
ппгэ	433	10.100.6.0/24	Allow	HIIPS	433	0.0.0.0/0	Allow

Security groups for the App-tier servers

* Network from which we will access our VPC * Network from which we will access our VPC

Figure 1.2: Security Groups for the EC2 Instance (Web and App tiers servers). 3306 is the default port used by Amazon Aurora, which is the database we are going to use

1.4 Launching a Web and App tiers instances and configuring the Web application

We will launch two EC2 instances. One for the Web-Tier servers and the other for the App-Tier servers.

The client wish to move to Linux based machines. So, we will propose the implementation of Ubuntu Server 18.04 LTS - 64 bits (x86) instances.

To respect the tech details required by the client, the following AWS instance must be used:

- Web-Tier:
 - t2.small: 1vCPU 2 GiB for 0.023 per Hour³
- App-Tier:
 - **a1.larg** : 2vCPU, 4 BiB

However, Medi-Advice also would like to avail of the free tier as much as possible in the proof of concept design. This is why we will use **t2.micro** EC2 instance, which are eligible for the free tier.

1.5 Creating Amazon Machine Images for the Web-Tier and App-Tier instances

Now that the application has been configured and is correctly running in our instances, we will create two Amazon Machine Images (AMI), one for the Web-Tier instances and another for the App-Tier instances.

An AMI is a complete copy of the volumes of an instance. This way, when we launch a new instance from these AMI, they will be created containing the same data as the original instance so they will be ready to run the Web App. [AWS Academy (2019a)]

These images will be used later by the Auto Scaling group to create new instances that will be deployed to scale the resources of the web application when needed.

 $^{^3\}mathrm{This}$ EC2 instance is not eligible for the AWS free usage tier

1.6 Load Balancing

A Load Balancer, is an escencial component of a highly available design. The Load Balancer distribute traffic accross several instances.

A Load Balancer will check if the server is online before sending the request. If a server is down because it reached the maximum number of requests that can manage, the Load Balancer will detect it and send the request to another server.

In our architecture, we will need two Load balancers. The first one will distribute requests coming from the Internet across Web-Tier instances. A second one will be configured to distribute requests coming from the Web-Tiers instance across App-Tiers instances.

1.7 Auto Scaling

One of the most important features of cloud architecture is the capability to automatically scale resources based on demand.

This feature, that is commonly referred to as Scalability, avoid downtimes and thus provides high availability by increasing resources when the system reached its maximum capability. Also, it provides cost-efficient by reducing resources when the capabilities provisioned are no longer needed.

Two auto saling groups will be defined in our architecture. The first one will be in charge of provisioning or terminating Web-Tiers instances based on the demand. The second one will manage App-Tiers instances.

The auto-scaling groups will be defined so the minimum number of servers in each tier will be 2. Because Medi-Advice is expecting to double the number of users due to the coronavirus crisis, the auto-scaling group will automatically provision the necessary resources to manage the increasing demand, but it will scale back when the situation returns to 'normal'. This way, the company will only pay for the resources that are needed to manage the demand.

Database tier 1.8

Security groups for the DB					
Inbound					
Туре	Port	Source	Allow/Deny		
тор	2206	10.100.5.0/24	Allow		
ICP	3300	10.100.6.0/24	Allow		

Figure 1.3: Security Groups for the Aurora DB

1.9 Storing Web-Accessible Content in Amazon S3

Storing static large files in an EC2 instance is not a good practice. It actually generates critical issues that must be avoided when designing a cloud infrastructure.

If we are building a highly available environment, we need common storage for all the instances of our infrastructure since replicating the data across all the instances is not a good strategy at all.

Amazon S3 is an object storage service that provides high availability in a region. The data in an S3 bucket is automatically replicated across 3 availability zones. [AWS Academy (2019c)]

Therefore, a good practice is to store files or content that is not going to change in an Amazon S3 bucket. Another important point is that the content in an S3 bucket can be easily cached using Amazon Cloud CloudFront. We will talk more about it in the next section.

In our design, we will create an Amazon S3 in our primary region and another one in the secondary region. We will of course implement cross-region data replication between both buckets.

Caching with Amazon CloudFront 1.10

Caching refers to temporary store data in an intermediate location between the source and the final user so it can easily be accessed from a closer location.

Caching is a critical element that should be implemented especially if our site is going to be used for people around the world.

Amazon CloudFront is a caching service that distributes content worldwide.

In the case of Medi-Advice, they are expecting to have a big demand in both Ireland and in the US. Due to the remoteness of these main locations, the implementation of Caching become fundamental to the cloud infrastructure.

Because Medi-Advice is based in Ireland, it is logical to think the largest part of the customer lives in Ireland. This is why we have chosen Ireland as our primary location. This way, we are looking to provide optimal services by reducing Latency in our primary location. Task 2

Architecture diagram



Outbound			
Туре	Port	Destination	Allow/Deny
HTTP	80	0.0.0.0/0	Allow
HTTPS	443	0.0.0.0/0	Allow
* Network fr	rom whic	h we will access	s our VPC

Outbound					
Туре	Port	Destination	Allow/Deny		
HTTP	80	10.100.5.0/24 10.100.6.0/24	Allow		
HTTPS	443	10.100.5.0/24 10.100.6.0/24	Allow		
* Network from which we will access our VPC					

Outbound							
Туре	Port	Destination	Allow/Deny				
TCP	3306	Aurora DB IP	Allow				
HTTP	80	0.0.0/0	Allow				
HTTPS	443	0.0.0/0	Allow				

* Network from which we will access our VPC

Figure 2.1: Architecture diagram

Task 3

Implementation of a proof of concept solution

We were going to implement the regions configuration we explained in the first task. However, because of the restriction of the AWS Starter Account we haven't been able to use European regions but only US regions.

3.1 Creating a VPC



🔋 VPC Management Console 🗙	+	_ 0 ×
← → C 🔒 console.aws.ama	zon.com/vpc/home?region=us-east-1#wizardFullpage 🍳 🎓 🦉 🚳 👂 🔟 📀	=J 🌍 :
🔢 Apps 🕝 Grammarly 🧯 Mie	rrosoft Offi 🛛 W User:Adeloale 🌱 Organize dire 😵 Centering in C	>>
aws Services Step 2: VPC with a Sing	✓ Resource Groups ✓ ★ ⚠ vocstartsoft/user737082=adeloale ✓ Jle Public Subnet	N. Virginia 👻
IPv4 CIDR block:*	10.100.0.0/20 (4091 IP addresses available)	
IPv6 CIDR block:	 No IPv6 CIDR Block Amazon provided IPv6 CIDR block IPv6 CIDR block owned by me 	
VPC name:	VPCMediAdvice	
Public subnet's IPv4 CIDR:*	10.100.1.0/24 (251 IP addresses available)	- 1
Availability Zone:*	us-east-1a 🔻	
Subnet name:	Public subnet	
	You can add more subnets after AWS creates the VPC.	
Service endpoints	Add Endpoint	
Enable DNS hostnames:*	● Yes ◎ No	
Hardware tenancy:*	Default	
	Cancel and Exit Back Cre	ate VPC
🗨 Feedback 🔇 English (U	S) Privacy Policy T	erms of Use
	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its affiliates. All righ	its reserved.

3.1.1 Configuring the VPC's ACL

🗊 Edit inbound rules VF	rc∧ × +				_ 🗆 ×
← → C 🔒 console.a	aws.amazon.com/vpc/home?region=us-e	ast-1#EditInboundRu	lles:networkAclId=acl-0246011d1fe88	17aa @ 🕁 🐔 📓 👂	🔯 📀 🅞 :
🗰 Apps 🕒 Grammarly	Microsoft Offi W User:Adel	oale 🌱 Organ	ize dire 😵 Centering in C	 (7) Tariq Rama L Le Petit Lune 	ti »
aws _{Ser}	vices 🖌 Resource Groups 🗸	\$	∧ vocstartsoft/u	ser737082=adeloale 👻 N. Virginia 👻	Support 👻
<u> </u>			~		
Network ACLs > Edit inbo	ound rules				
Edit inbound	rules				
	Network ACL acl-0246011d1fe88	17aa			
Rule #	Туре	Protocol	Port Range (i)	Source (j)	Allow / Deny
110	HTTP (80) 🔻	TCP (6) 🔻	80	0.0.0/0	ALLOW 🔻
120	HTTPS (443) 🔻	TCP (6) 🔻	443	0.0.0/0	ALLOW 🔻
130	SSH (22) 🔻	TCP (6) 🔻	22	0.0.0/0	ALLOW 🔻
Add Rule					
4					Þ
* Required					Cancel Save
🔍 Feedback 🔇 En	glish (US)			s affiliates. All rights reserved. Privacy Poli	cy Terms of Use

Image: Figure 1 Image: Figure 2 Image: Figure 2 Image: Figure 2	_ 🗆 ×						
🗧 🔶 C 🔒 console.aws.amazon.com/vpc/home?region=us-east-1#EditOutboundRules:networkAclid=acl-0246011d1fe8817aa 🔍 😒	- 🐔 🖾 🛱 🔟 🙁 🖏 :						
🛗 Apps 🕝 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft Offi 🗴 User:Adeloale 🌱 Organize dire 🤣 Centering in C 🗖 (7) Tariq Rama L	L Le Petit Luneti »						
aws Services → Resource Groups → ★ 🗘 vocstartsott/user737082=adeloale →	N. Virginia 👻 Support 👻						
Network ACLs > Edit outbound rules Edit outbound rules							
Network ACL acl-0246011d1fe8817aa							
Rule # Type Protocol Port Range ① Destination ①	Allow / Deny						
110 HTTP (80) V TCP (6) V 80 0.0.0.0/0	ALLOW 🔻						
120 HTTPS (443) ▼ TCP (6) ▼ 443 0.0.0.0/0	ALLOW 🔻						
Add Rule							

3.2 Subnet architecture

Crea	te subnet VPC Managem	nent Console - Mozilla I	Firefox	008
💁 Correo: adelo aleman 🗙 🛛 🧃 Create s	ubnet VPC 🛚 🗙 🖕 New	Tab × +		
← → C ŵ ♥ ■ https://co	onsole.aws. amazon.com /vp	c/home?region= 110%	··· 🗟 🕅 🗉 🕲	⊜ ≡
Grammarly 🧐 Microsoft Office Home	e 🛈 CCT: 2019 - Sept - Lev	e		
aws Services - Res	ource Groups 🗸 🔹 🛠	vocstartsoft/user73	7082=adel 👻 N. Virginia 👻 S	Support 👻
Subnets > Create subnet				
Create subnet				
Specify your subnet's IP address block in C netmask, and can be the same size as your	IDR format; for example, 10.0. VPC. An IPv6 CIDR block mus	0.0/24. IPv4 block sizes mu at be a /64 CIDR block.	ust be between a /16 netmask and /2	8
Name tag	Public subnet 2		0	
VPC*	vpc-09a493d53dd471610	•	0	
Availability Zone	us-east-1b	•	•	
VPC CIDRs	CIDR	Status	Status Reason	
	10.100.0.0/20	associated		
IPv4 CIDR block*	10.100.2.0/24		3	
* Required			Cancel	reate
🗨 Feedback 🔇 English (US)	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web S	ervices, Inc. or its affiliates. All	rights reserved. Privacy Policy Term	ns of Use

Crea	ite subnet VPC Man	agement Console - Moz	zilla Firefox	•	
🛿 Correo: adelo aleman 🗙 🎁 Create s	ubnet VPC N × +				
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C \textcircled{o} \textcircled{o} \textcircled{o} https://co	onsole.aws. amazon.cc	m/vpc/home?region=	110% ···	III\ 🗉 🖲 🕓	Ξ
🕄 Grammarly 📫 Microsoft Office Hom	e 🛈 CCT: 2019 - Sept	- Leve			
aws Services - Res	ource Groups 👻 🕈	A vocstartsoft/us	ser737082=adel 🝷	N. Virginia 👻 Suppor	
Subnets > Create subnet					
Create subnet					
Specify your subnet's IP address block in C netmask, and can be the same size as your	IDR format; for example VPC. An IPv6 CIDR bloc	, 10.0.0.0/24. IPv4 block siz	es must be between a	/16 netmask and /28	
Name tag	Private web-liers sub	net 2	0		
VPC*	vpc-09a493d53dd471	510	- 0		
Availability Zone	us-east-1b		- 0		
VPC CIDRs	CIDR	Status	Status R	eason	
	10.100.0.0/20	associated			
IPv4 CIDR block*	10.100.4.0/24		0		
* Required				Cancel Create	
🎈 Feedback 🔇 English (US)	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon	Web Services, Inc. or its affiliate	es. All rights reserved.	Privacy Policy Terms of Us	se

	Subnets VPC Management Console - Mozilla Firefox 🛛 👄 🛱								9 😣		
		adelo aleman 🗵 🧻 Subnet	s VPC Manage ×								
€)-	→ C	∂	tps://console.aws. a	mazon.com	/vpc/home?region=us-east-1#subnets:sc	ort=Subnet (110%)	⊠ ☆			0	Ξ
🕝 Gr	amma	rly 🧯 Microsoft Office Hon	ne 🛈 CCT: 2019 - Se	ept - Leve							
	aw	/S Services - Re	source Groups 🗸	\$	\wedge	vocstartsoft/user7370)82=adel 👻 N	Virginia	- Suppor	t 🗸	
	\sim		oouroo oroupo		4			5			
	Crea	te subnet Actions 👻							•7	•	ര
	0	Filter by tage and attributes or sea	rah hu kanavard					12.2	1 to 12 of 1	2 > >	
•	~	Filter by tags and attributes or sea	ICIT by Reyword						1 10 12 01 1		
		Name ~	Subnet ID 🔺	State -	VPC	IPv4 CIDR -	Available IPv4	IPv6	Availability	/ Zone 🗸	- 1
		Public subnet 2	subnet-07e60e1	available	vpc-09a493d53dd471610 VPCMediAdvice	10.100.2.0/24	251	-	us-east-1b		
		Private App-Tiers subnet 2	subnet-081d1b5	available	vpc-09a493d53dd471610 VPCMediAdvice	10.100.6.0/24	251	-	us-east-1b		
			subnet-0b0cf56d	available	vpc-3debfe47	172.31.0.0/20	4091		us-east-1a		
		Private App-Tiers subnet 1	subnet-0c8fdc4	available	vpc-09a493d53dd471610 VPCMediAdvice	10.100.5.0/24	251		us-east-1a		
		Private Web-Tiers subnet 2	subnet-0e544af	available	vpc-09a493d53dd471610 VPCMediAdvice	10.100.4.0/24	251		us-east-1b		
		Public subnet 1	subnet-0f49c78	available	vpc-09a493d53dd471610 VPCMediAdvice	10.100.1.0/24	250		us-east-1a		
		Private Web-Tiers subnet 1	subnet-0ffa421c	available	vpc-09a493d53dd471610 VPCMediAdvice	10.100.3.0/24	251		us-east-1a		
			subnet-3eec2b1f	available	vpc-3debfe47	172.31.80.0/20	4091	-	us-east-1b		
			subnet-5ce05252	available	vpc-3debfe47	172.31.64.0/20	4091	-	us-east-1f		
			subnet-998800d4	available	vpc-3debfe47	172.31.16.0/20	4091	-	us-east-1c		
			subnet-9ab673c5	available	vpc-3debfe47	172.31.32.0/20	4091	-	us-east-1d		
			subnet-a13f339f	available	vpc-3debfe47	172.31.48.0/20	4091	-	us-east-1e		
					Q Q Q				_		-
	Subn	ets: subnet-0ffa421cd74b84f39	, subnet-0f49c78597d	4c7fe9, subn	et-0e544af5694864620, subnet-0c8fdc4a804	bdcd38, subnet-081d1	b5fd45780c61, sub	net-	_		
	U7Ph	#1943e047005									
•	Feed	back 🔇 English (US)			© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web \$	Services, Inc. or its affiliate	es. All rights reserved.	Privacy	Policy Terr	ns of Use	

3.2.1 Adding a target to the IGW in the public-named subnets to make them really publics



Subn	ets VPC Management Console - Mozilla Fir	efox	
🧊 Subnets VPC Manag 🗴 🕂			
$\leftarrow \rightarrow C \ c$	//console.aws. amazon.com /v 110% ···· 😒	☆ ⊻ II\ 🗉 🔍	⊚ ≡
Grammarly 🕻 Microsoft Office	Home 🛈 CCT: 2019 - Sept - Leve		
aws Services -	Resource Groups 🗸 🏠 vocstart	tsoft/user737082=adel 🝷	N. Virgir
Create subnet Actions *		Ð	¢ 0
Filter by tags and attributes of	r search by keyword	< ≤ 1 to 12 of 12	\rightarrow $>$
Name	✓ Subnet ID ▲ State ✓ VPC		-
Public subnet 2	subnet-07e60e1 available vpc-09a4	93d53dd471610 VPCMedi/	Advice
Private App-Tiers subnet	2 subnet-081d1b5 available vpc-09a4	93d53dd471610 VPCMedi/	Advice
	subnet-0b0cf56d available vpc-3debf	fe47	
Subnet: subnet-07e60e1943eb4	7bd5	_	
Description Flow Lo	Route Table Network ACL	Tags Sharing	g
Edit route table association			
Route Table: rtb-086947fe4d4	e17c8d		
	$ \langle \langle 1 \text{ to 2 of 2} \rangle \rangle $		
Destination	Target		
10.100.0.0/20	local		
0.0.0/0	igw-0162a6deb2a381452		
🗨 Feedback 🔇 English (US)		Privacy Policy Term	s of Use

© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

3.3 Creating a NAT Gateway in each Public subnet

🚹 architect: 🗙 🎯 AWS-Sin 🗙 🖸 1	willie 🐠 🗙 💟 Vocareun 🗙 💟 Workben 🗙 🔋 Create N. 🗙 + 🛛 – 🗆 🗙
← → C 🔒 console.aws.amazon.com/	vpc/home?region=us-east-1#CreateNatGate 🍳 🛧 🐮 📓 👂 🚺 📀 🗊 🌍 🗄
🛗 Apps 🜀 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft 🕯	Offi 🛯 W User:Adeloale 🌱 Organize dire 😵 Centering in C »
aws Services - R	esource Groups 🗸 🔭 🗘 adeloaleman 🛩 N. Virginia 🗸
NAT Gateways > Create NAT Gateway	1
Create a NAT gateway and assign it an E	lastic IP address. Learn more.
Subnet* SU	bhet-02d7c6a59df1fabe4
6	
Elastic IP Allocation ID	* einalloc-0e11eadbca9c47a62
	Allocate Flastic IP address
	Elastic IP address (34. 192. 11.209) allocated.
	0
	Key (128 characters maximum) Value (256 characters maximum)
	This resource currently has no tags
	Add lag SU remaining (Up to SU tags maximum)
* Required	Cancel Create a NAT Gateway
🗨 Feedback 🔇 English (US)	Privacy Policy Terms of Use
	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

3.4 Creating 2 new private route tables

These private route tables are going to be used so Private Web-Tiers subnet 1, Private Web-Tiers subnet 2, Private App-Tiers subnet 1, and Private App-Tiers subnet 2 are able to route Internet-bound traffic through the NAT Gateways created in the Public subnets.

🔋 Create route table VPC 🛚 🗙 🕂		_
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C $$ console.aws.amazon.com/vp	c/home?region=us-east-1#CreateRouteTa 🍳 🛧	ë 📓 👂 🔟 📀 💷 🅞 :
🗰 Apps 💿 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft Of	fi W User:Adeloale 🌱 Organize dire 😵	Centering in C »
aws Services - Res	ource Groups 🗸 🛠 🛛	🕽 adeloaleman 🕶 N. Virginia 🕶
Route Tables > Create route table		
Create route table		
A route table specifies how packets are for	warded between the subnets within your VPC, the inter	net, and your VPN connection.
Name tag	Private Web-Tiers route table 1	0
VPC*	vpc-04fc1e97d0f3f3a26	C O
* Required		Cancel Create
🗨 Feedback 🔇 English (US)		Privacy Policy Terms of Use
	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services,	Inc. or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

🔋 Edit routes VPC Manager 🗙 Net	v Tab × New Tab	× +	_ 🗆 ×
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C $$ console.aws.amazon.co	m/vpc/home?region=us-east-1#EditRoutes:rou	teTab 🖈 🧉 📔 👂 🚺	😋 🗊 🌍 :
🛗 Apps 🜀 Grammarly 🚺 Microsc	ft Offi 🛛 W User:Adeloale 🌱 Organ	ize dire 😵 Centering in C	*
AWS Services v Re	source Groups 👻 🛠	🋕 adeloaleman 🕶 N. Virç	ginia 🕶 Support 🕶
Route Tables > Edit routes Edit routes			
Destination	Target	Status	Propagated
10.100.0.0/20	local	▼ active	No
0.0.0/0	▼ nat-0840d60b9cd75ce81	•	No
Add route			
* Required		Canc	sel Save routes
🗨 Feedback 🔇 English (US)	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its a	affiliates. All rights reserved. Privacy Po	licy Terms of Use

3.5 Defining Servers Security Groups

🔋 Create security group VP 🗙 New Tab	× +			_ 0	ı ×
← → C	/home?region=us-east-1#CreateSecurityGroup: Q 🗴	x 🐔 🖻 👂 I	0 📀 🗉	a 🌍) :
🛚 Apps 🛭 🙃 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft Off	W User:Adeloale 🌱 Organize dire 🥸 Centering in C 😐 (7) Tariq Rama	L Le Petit Lunet	i		*
aws Services - Res	uurce Groups 🗸 🖈 🗘 adeloalem	nan 👻 N. Virginia	- Suppor	-	
Security Groups > Create security group Create Security group A security group	sum instance to control inhourd and outbound to file. To specie a new security group fill in th	o fields below			
Security group acts as a virtual mewan roo	your instance to control inbound and outbound trainc. To create a new seconcy group in in the	e fields below.			
Security group name	wed-tief servers	G			
Description*	Web-tier servers	0			
VPC	vpc-04fc1e97d0f3f3a26	• 0			
* Required	\$		Cancel	Creat	e
Feedback G English (US)	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services. Inc. or its affiliates. All rights	reserved. Privacy F	Policy Terr	ns of Us	se

aws ecurity Groups	Ser	vices - Resent	ource Groups 👻	*	Ą	adeloaleman 🕶 N. Virginia 👻 Supp	ort 👻
dit inbc	ound	rules					
ound rules co	ntrol the	incoming traffic th	nat's allowed to reach th	he instance.			
ype (i)		Protocol (i)	Port Range (i)	Source (i)		Description (i)	
HTTP	•	TCP	80	Custom 🔻	10.100.3.0/24, 10.100.4.0/24	e.g. SSH for Admin Desktop	8
HTTPS	•	ТСР	443	Custom 🔻	10.100.3.0/24, 10.100.4.0/24	e.g. SSH for Admin Desktop	⊗
SSH	•	TCP	22	Custom 🔻	0.0.0.0/0	e.g. SSH for Admin Desktop	8
Add Rule	made or a very bri	n existing rules wil ief period of time u	ا result in the edited rule ntil the new rule can be	e being deleted and a created.	new rule created with the new details.	This will cause traffic that depends on tha	it rule to

3.6 Launching a Web and App tiers instances and configuring the Web application

3.6.1 Launching the instances

ological correo: adelo aleman ×	Launch instance wi	izard EC2 Management Consc wizar × +	ole - Mozilla Firefox		90
$\leftarrow \rightarrow C $	https://console.av	vs.amazon.com/ec2/v2/home?re	(110%) … 🛛 🛣	III\ 🗉 🖲 🤇) ≡
		1. 2019 - Sept - Leve			
Services	 Resource Gr 	roups 🗸 🍾 vocstari	tsott/user737082=adel 🔻	N. Virginia 👻	Suppor
1. Choose AMI 2. Choose Inst	ance Type 3. Config	ure Instance 4. Add Storage 5. /	Add Tags 6. Configure Sec	curity Group	
Step 1: Choose an	A <u>mazon Ma</u>	Chine Image (AMI) SUSE Linux Enterprise Server 15 Serv General Purpose (SSD) Volume Type Systems Management, Web and Scri enabled. Root device type: ebs Virtualization typ	vice Pack 1 (HVM), EBS . Public Cloud, Advanced ipting, and Legacy modules e: hvm ENA Enabled: Yes	Cancel and Exit	I
	Free tier eligible	Ubuntu Server 18.04 LTS (HVM ami-085925f297f89fce1 (64-bit ami-05d7ab19b28efa213 (64-bi Ubuntu Server 18.04 LTS (HVM),EBS Volume Type. Support available from (http://www.ubuntu.com/cloud/servi Root device type: ebs Virtualization typ), SSD Volume Type - x86) / t Arm) General Purpose (SSD) n Canonical icces). e: hvm ENA Enabled: Yes	Select 64-bit (x86) 64-bit (Arm)	
	Amazon RDS	Are you launching a database in Amazon Relational Database Serv and scale your database on AWS I management tasks. With RDS, you MariaDB, MySQL, Oracle, Postgree Aurora is a MySQL- and PostgreS	nstance? Try Amazon RDS rice (RDS) makes it easy to s by automating time-consum u can easily deploy Amazon SQL, and SQL Server datab iQL-compatible, enterprise-c	S. Hide set up, operate, ing database Aurora, ases on AWS. dass database	

Feedback	🔇 English (US)	© 2008 - 2020, Ai	mazon Web Servio	ces, Inc. or its affiliates. ,	All rights reserved.	Privacy Policy	Terms of Use
ec	^ v	Highlight <u>A</u> ll	Match <u>C</u> ase	Match Diacritics	<u>W</u> hole Words	5 of 5 matche	s X

	Launch instance wizard EC2 Management Console - Mozilla Firefox		008
orreo: adelo	aleman 🗙 🧃 Launch instance wizar 🗙 🕂		
$\overleftarrow{\bullet}$ \rightarrow $\overleftarrow{\bullet}$	♥ A https://console.aws.amazon.com/ec2/v2/home?r∈ 110% ···· ♥ ☆) (2)	⊚ ≡
😋 Grammarly 【	🕽 Microsoft Office Home 🛛 @ CCT: 2019 - Sept - Leve		
aws	Services 🗸 Resource Groups 🗸 🏠 vocstartsoft/user737082=adel 👻 N. Virgin	nia 👻	Support
1. Choose AMI	2. Choose Instance Type 3. Configure Instance 4. Add Storage 5. Add Tags 6. Configure Security Group		

Step 2: Choose an Instance Type Amazon EC2 provides a wide selection of instance types optimized to fit different use cases. Instances are virtual servers that can run I applications. They have varying combinations of CPU, memory, storage, and networking capacity, and give you the flexibility to choose the appropriate mix of resources for your applications. Learn more about instance types and how they can meet your computing needs.

Currently selected: t2.micro (Variable ECUs, 1 vCPUs, 2.5 GHz, Intel Xeon Family, 1 GiB memory, EBS only)

	Family ~	Туре -	vCPUs (j)	Memory (GiB)	Instance Storage (GB) 👻	EBS- Optimized ~ Available (i)	Network Performance
	General purpose	t2.nano	1	0.5	EBS only	-	Low to Modera
	General purpose	t2.micro Free tier eligible	1	1	EBS only	-	Low to Modera
	General purpose	t2.small	1	2	EBS only	-	Low to Modera
	General purpose	t2.medium	2	4	EBS only	-	Low to Modera
	General purpose	t2.large	2	8	EBS only	-	Low to Modera
Cancel Previous Review and Launch Next: Configure Instance Details							
Q F	eedback 🔇 English (US)	© 2008 - 2020, A	mazon Web Serv	ices, Inc. or its af	filiates. All rights reserv	ved. Privacy Policy	Terms of Use
ec	^ v	Highlight All	Match Case	Match Diad	critics Whole Wo	ords 5 of 5 mate	thes

×

3.6.2 Accessing the instance using SSH and Installing the necessary packages

ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~	•
File Edit View Search Terminal Tabs Help	
adelo@adelo-laptop: ~/1-system/1-d × adelo@adelo-laptop: ~/downloads × ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192: ~ ×	Æ •
<pre>(base) adelo@adelo-laptop:~/1-system/1-disco_local/1-mis_archivos/.stockage/desktop-dis/it_cct/1-Cloud_ _Virtualisation_Frameworks/CA2\$ ls 'CA2 CVF 40.pdf' adelo-laptop.pem latex_report notas</pre>	and
(base) adelo@adelo-laptop:~/1-system/1-disco_local/1-mis_archivos/.stockage/desktop-dis/it_cct/1-Cloud_	and
_virtualisation_raneworks/cA2\$ soud cimide boo adeto tapcop.pems/.stockage/desktop-dis/it_cct/1-Cloud_ _Virtualisation_Frameworks/CA2\$ ssh -i adelo-laptop.pem ubuntu@3.219.216.157 Welcome to Ubuntu 18.04.4 LTS (GNU/Linux 4.15.0-1065-aws x86_64)	and
* Documentation: https://help.ubuntu.com * Management: https://landscape.canonical.com * Support: https://ubuntu.com/advantage	
System information as of Wed May 6 21:16:07 UTC 2020	
System load: 0.04 Processes: 87 Usage of /: 13.9% of 7.69GB Users logged in: 0 Memory usage: 15% IP address for eth0: 10.100.1.192 Swap usage: 0%	
0 packages can be updated. O updates are security updates.	
Last login: Wed May 6 21:15:25 2020 from 80.111.84.253 To run a command as administrator (user "root"), use "sudo <command/> ". See "man sudo_root" for details.	
ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~\$ ls -l total 0	
ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~\$ ls -a bash_history .bash_logout .bashrc .cache .gnupg .profile .ssh ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~\$ 	

<pre>File Edit View Search Terminal Tabs Help Tadelo@adelo-laptop:-//ownloads & ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:-</pre>		ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~		
adelo@adelo-laptop:-/1-system/1-d* adelo@adelo-laptop:-/downloads > ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:-5 sudo apt update Hit:1 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic InRelease [8.7 kB] Get:3 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates InRelease [88.7 kB] [9.7 kB] Get:3 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates InRelease [74.6 kB] [9.7 kB] Get:3 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/universe amd64 Packages [8570 kB] [9.8 kB] Get:4 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/multiverse amd64 Packages [151 kB] [9.6 kB] Get:5 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/multiverse Translation-en [198 kB] [9.6 kB] Get:1 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/main Translation-en [112.6 kB] [9.6 kB] Get:1 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/restricted Translation-en [12.6 kB] [9.6 kB] Get:1 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/main amd64 Packages [15.5 kB] [9.6 kB] Get:1 http://us-e	File Edit View Search Terminal Tabs H	elp		
<pre>ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:-\$ sudo apt update Hit:1 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic InRelease Get:2 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates InRelease [88.7 kB] Get:3 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/universe amd64 Packages [8570 kB] Get:4 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/universe ranslation-en [4941 kB] Get:6 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/multiverse Translation-en [4941 kB] Get:6 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/multiverse Translation-en [108 kB] Get:6 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/multiverse Translation-en [188 kB] Get:9 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/main amd64 Packages [932 kB] Get:9 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/main amd64 Packages [50.1 kB] Get:10 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/main amd64 Packages [50.1 kB] Get:11 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/restricted amd64 Packages [165 kB] Get:13 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/mitverse amd64 Packages [165 kB] Get:13 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/universe amd64 Packages [15.5 kB] Get:13 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates/mitverse amd64 Packages [15.5 kB] Get:14 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backports/main amd64 Packages [7516 B] Get:14 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backports/main amd64 Packages [746 4 B] Get:20 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backports/main amd64 Packages [746 4 B] Get:21 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bio</pre>	adelo@adelo-laptop: ~/1-system/1-d ×	adelo@adelo-laptop: ~/downloads ×	ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~	. ⊞ -
ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~\$	<pre>ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~\$ sudo apt Hit:1 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:3 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:3 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:4 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:5 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:7 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:8 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:9 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:10 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:10 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:11 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:13 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:13 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:16 http://us-east-1.ec2.archive Get:16 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:16 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:17 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:18 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:19 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:19 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:20 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:21 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:21 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:21 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:21 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:21 http://us-east-1.ec2.archiv Get:21 http://security.ubuntu.com/ Get:22 http://security.ubuntu.com/ Get:23 http://security.ubuntu.com/ Get:24 http://security.ubuntu.com/ Get:25 http://security.ubuntu.com/ Get:26 http://security.ubuntu.com/ Get:26 http://security.ubuntu.com/ Fetched 18.7 MB in 4s (5149 kB/s) Reading package lists Done Building Gependency tree Reading state information Done 20 packages can be upgraded. Run ' ubuntu@io-10-100-1-192:~S</pre>	update .ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic InRelease .ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates .ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/universe buntu bionic-security InRelease [8] .ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/universe .ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic/multivers .ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-updates, e.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backpor e.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backpor e.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backpor e.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backpor e.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backpor e.ubuntu.com/ubuntu bionic-backpor ubuntu bionic-security/main amd64 ubuntu bionic-security/restricted a ubuntu bionic-security/restricted a ubuntu bionic-security/min rransla ubuntu bionic-security/min rransla ubuntu bionic-security/multiverse a ubuntu bionic-security/multiverse apt listupgradable' to see them	P InRelease [88.7 kB] s InRelease [74.6 kB] amd64 Packages [8570 kB] Jranslation-en [4941 kB] se amd64 Packages [151 kB] se aranslation-en [108 kB] main amd64 Packages [932 kB] /main Translation-en [18 kB] /restricted amd64 Packages [50.1 /restricted amd64 Packages [50.1 /restricted Translation-en [32 kB] /multiverse amd64 Packages [1068 kl /universe amd64 Packages [1068 kl /universe amd64 Packages [1068 kl /universe amd64 Packages [1068 kl /universe amd64 Packages [15.5 /multiverse amd64 Packages [15.5 /multiverse Translation-en [4764 B] ts/main Translation-en [4764 B] ts/universe Translation-en [4436 Packages [707 kB] ation-en [224 kB] amd64 Packages [60 kB] anslation-en [219 kB] amd64 Packages [7392 B] Translation-en [2788 B]	kB] kB] } B] B] B]

ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~ 🖉 🖷 🧟
File Edit View Search Terminal Tabs Help
adelo@adelo-laptop:~/1-system/1-d × 🛛 adelo@adelo-laptop:~/downloads × 🚺 ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~ 🛛 🗴
<pre>ubuntu@ip-10-100-1-192:~\$ sudo apt install apache2 Reading package lists Done Building dependency tree Reading state information Done The following additional packages will be installed: apache2-bin apache2-data apache2-utils libapr1 libaprutil1 libaprutil1-dbd-sqlite3 libaprutil1-ldap liblua5.2-0 ssl-cert Suggested packages: www-browser apache2-doc apache2-suexec-pristine apache2-suexec-custom openssl-blacklist The following NEW packages will be installed: apache2 apache2-bin apache2-data apache2-utils libapr1 libaprutil1 libaprutil1-dbd-sqlite3 liblua5.2-0 ssl-cert 0 upgraded, 10 newly installed, 0 to remove and 20 not upgraded. Need to get 1729 kB of archives. After this operation, 6986 kB of additional disk space will be used. Do you want to continue? [Y/n] y</pre>



3.6.3 Uploading the web app and testing it







3.7 Creating Amazon Machine Images for the Web-Tier and App-Tier instances

🔋 Instances EC2 Managem × +	□ ×							
← → C 🔒 console.aws.amazon.com/ec2/v2/home?region=us-east-1#Instancessort=owner 🔄 🐔 📓 👂 🚺 📀 🥞								
🗰 Apps 📀 Grammarly 🟮 Microsoft Offi 🖤 User:Adeloale 😵 Centering in C 💶 (7) Tariq Rama L Le Petit Luneti 🖌 Philippe Paye 🗴								
aws Services 🗸 Resource Groups 🗸 🏌 🗘 vocstartsoft/user/37082=adeloale 🖌 N. Virginia 🖌 Support 🗸								
Launch Instance Connect Actions ^ Actions ^ EC2 Dashboard New Q. Filter by tags and attributes or sear Connect Qet Windows Password R < 1 to 3 of 3 >	9 N							
Events Kew Vinstance ID Create Template From Instance ability Zone - Instance State - Status Checks - Alarm S	itatus							
Reports I-0486aab5c21 Instance State , st-1a running 2/2 checks passed None	1							
Limits I-Ocbe1c1f577 Instance Settings st-1a running 🔮 2/2 checks passed None	1							
■ INSTANCES I-0d93d1d664t Image I/2 checks passed None	1							
Instances Networking Bundle Instance (instance store AMI)								
Instance Types								
Launch Templates	Þ							
Spot Requests Instance: i-0486aab5c2fae1405 Public DNS: ec2-34-237-139-143.compute-1.amazonaws.com								
Savings Plans								
Reserved Instances Description Status Checks Monitoring Tags								
Dedicated Hosts New Instance ID +0486aab5c2fae1405 Public DNS (IPv4) ec2-34-237-139-143.compute-	•							
Feedback Services, Inc. or its affiliates. All rights reserved. Privacy Policy Terms of Use								

-		- v
	Instances EC2 Managem: × + -	· · ·
÷	O e console.aws.amazon.com/ec2/v2/home?region=us-east-1#instances:sort=owner	🌍 E
	Apps 📀 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft Offi 🖤 User:Adeloale 😵 Centering in C 💶 (7) Tariq Rama L Le Petit Luneti 🖌 Philippe Paye	»
	Create Image ×	
0	Instance ID (i) i-0486aab5c2fae1405	0
	Image name (i) AppTiers	
	Image description (j)	
	No reboot (j)	il u
	Instance Volumes	
-	Volume Type ① Device Snapshot ① Size (GiB) Volume Type ① IOPS ① Throughput (MB/s) ① Delete on Termination Encrypted	
	Root /dev/sda1 snap- 0f70c3b7343376ea2 8 General Purpose SSD (gp2) • 100 / 3000 N/A 🐼 Not Encrypted	
	Add New Volume	
	Total size of EBS Volumes: 8 GiB When you create an EBS image, an EBS snapshot will also be created for each of the above volumes.	
-	Cancel Create Image	<u>}</u>
	Bundle Tasks Description Status Checks Monitoring Tags	
-	ELASTIC BLOCK STORE Instance ID I-0486aab5c2fae1405 Public DNS (IPv4) ec2-34-237-139-143.compute-	
	🗣 Feedback 📀 English (US) © 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its affiliates. All rights reserved. Privacy Policy Terms of	fUse

🧃 AMIs EC2 Management 🤇 🗙	+				- 0	×
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C \oplus console.aws.ama	zon.com/ec2/v2/home?region=us-east-1#Images:sort=name	¢ ë) 🛛 🤇	9	E
🗰 Apps 🔞 Grammarly 🧯 Mi	crosoft Offi 🛚 W User:Adeloale 😵 Centering in C 💶 (7) Tariq Rama L Le Petit Lui	neti 🗸	Philipp	e Paye		>>
aws Services ~	Resource Groups 🗸 🍾 🗘 vocstartsoft/user/737082=adeloa	le 🕶	N. Virginia		iport 🗸	
New EC2 Experience	Launch Actions *			∆ €	• •	0
EC2 Dashboard New	Owned by me 👻 🔍 Filter by tags and attributes or search by keyword	0	K <	1 to 2 of	2 >	>
Events New Tags	Name V AMI Name AMI ID V Source V Owner	- Visibili	ty –	Status	~	Crea
Reports	AppTiers ami-004011183fc770f35 794372818257/ 794372818257	Private		available		Мау
Limits	WebTiers ami-0bb7cd75f6b293f7b 794372818257/ 794372818257	Private		available		May
INSTANCES Instances Instance Types						

3.8 Load Balancing



🧊 Create Load Balancer EC 🗙	+					_	o x
← → C 🔒 console.aws.amazo	n.com/ec2/v2/home?re	egion=us-east-1#V2CreateELJ	3Wizard:type=application:	Q	🖈 🐔 🚮 🖇	9 🔟 😙 🛯 🍕) E
🗰 Apps (Grammarly 🧯 Micr	osoft Offi W Use	er:Adeloale 🝪 Centeri	ing in C 🛛 (7) Tariq Rama	. L Le Petit Lu	neti 🗹 Philipp	oe Paye	**
aws Service	s 🗸 Resource	e Groups 👻 🔦	↓ vocstartsoft/user73	7082=adeloale	▼ N. Virginia	 Support 	•
1. Configure Load Balancer	2. Configure Security S	Settings 3. Configure S	ecurity Groups 4. Configure	e Routing 5. R	egister Targets	6. Review	
Step 1: Configure	Load Balar	ncer					
Add lister or							-
Add listener							
Availability Zones							
Specify the Availability Zones t specify only one subnet per Av balancer.	o enable for your lo ailability Zone. You	oad balancer. The load b u must specify subnets t	balancer routes traffic to the from at least two Availability	e targets in these y Zones to incre	e Availability Zor ase the availabil	nes only. You c ity of your load	an 1
VPC (j)	vpc-09a493d53	dd471610 (10.100.0.0/?	20) VPCMediAdvice 🔻				
Availability Zones	✓ us-east-1a	subnet-0f49c78597d4	1c7fe9 (Public subnet 1)				
		IPv4 address (i)	Assigned by AWS				
	✓ us-east-1b	subnet-07e60e1943e	b47bd5 (Public subnet 2)				
		IPv4 address (i)	Assigned by AWS				
							-
				Cancel	ext: Configure S	ecurity Setting	gs
🗨 Feedback 🔇 English	(US)	© 2008 - 2020, Amazon W	eb Services, Inc. or its affiliates.	All rights reserved	. Privacy Polic	y Terms of Us	se

🧃 Create Load Balance	r[EC × + ×
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C \cong conso	ie.aws.amazon.com/ec2/v2/home?region=us-east-1#V2Cre 🍳 🏠 🦉 📓 👂 🔟 📀 🛛 🎒 🗄
👖 Apps 🛭 🧿 Grammar	y 🧯 Microsoft Offi 😻 User:Adeloale 😵 Centering in C 💶 (7) Tariq Rama »
aws Servic	es 🗸 Resource Groups 👻 🏌 vocstartsoft/user737082=adeloale 👻 N. Virginia 👻 Support 👻
1. Configure Load Balancer	2. Configure Security Settings 3. Configure Security Groups 4. Configure Routing 5. Register Targets 6. Review
Step 4: Configure Your load balancer routes red targets using these health ch	: Routing juests to the targets in this target group using the protocol and port that you specify, and performs health checks on the eck settings. Note that each target group can be associated with only one load balancer.
Target group	
Target group) New target group
Name	TG-WebTiers
Target ty	pe ● Instance ○ IP ○ Lambda function
Protocol () HTTP T
Port	1 80
Health checks	
Protocol) HTTP T
Path (D /
 Advanced health c 	heck settings
Port	® traffic port © override
Healthy threshold	5
Unhealthy threshold	2
Timeout	1) 5 seconds
Interval	30 seconds
Success codes	200
🗨 Feedback 🔇 Englis	Cancel Previous Next: Register Targets h (US) © 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its affiliates. All rights reserved. Privacy Policy Terms of Use

3.9 Auto Scaling



🔋 EC2 Management Consoli 🗴 🥝 3.235.50.143/MediAdvice/ × +	×
← → C 🔒 console.aws.amazon.com/ec2/autoscaling/home?region=us-east-1#AutoScalingGroups:view=details;id=App+Tier	: 🗳 💷 💿 🔟 🔍 😳
🔡 Apps 🌀 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft Offi 🖤 User:Adeloale 🌱 Organize dire 🚱 Centering in C 💶 (7) Tariq Rama 🗉 Le I	Petit Luneti »
aws Services y Descurre Grouns y	eman y N. Virninia y Sunnort y
	initian (, virginita) Support (
This older console is being replaced with the new EC2 Auto Scaling console. No new features or improvements will be	e made in this older console. Go to
the new console.	_
Instances	
instance types	
Snot Requests	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Savings Plans	
Reserved Instances Filter: Q. Filter Auto Scaling groups X IK < 1	I to 2 of 2 Auto Scaling Groups >>
Dedicated Hosts	- Default Cooldown - Health Ch
Scheduled Instances	Dental Cooldown Theath on
Capacity Reservations App Tier App-Configuration 2 2 2 4 us-east-1a, us-east-1b	300 300
Web Tier Web-Configuration 2 2 2 4 us-east-1a, us-east-1b	300 300
AMIs	
Bundle Tasks	
Auto Scaling Group: App Tier	
Volumes Details Activity History Scaling Policies Instances Monitoring Notifications Tags Scheduled A	ctions Lifecycle Hooks
Snapshots	
Lifecycle Manager Launch Configuration (D. App-Configuration Availability Zo	one(s) () us-east-1a, us-east-1b
NETWORK & SECURITY Sub	net(s) i subnet-017ab1b97c3(
Security Groups	0bb471ac182ecb1ac
Elastic IPs Classic Load Pale	incare (1)
Placement Groups Min (i) 2	
Key Pairs Max (b) 4 Target G	roups () TG-AppTiers
Network Interfaces Health Check	Type (j) ELB
	• • • • • • •
https://console.aws.amazon.com/ec2sp/v1/si/home?regio © 2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its affiliates. All right-	s reserved. Privacy Policy Terms of Use

3.10 Storing Web-Accessible Content in Amazon S3

🗊 AWS Account × 🛛 💟 Workbench × 🤤 S3 Management Cr × 🥫 Bucket Restriction × 🛛 🕇	_ 🗆 ×
← → C 🔒 s3.console.aws.amazon.com/s3/bucket/create?region=us-east-1 🔄 🛠 👹 👂 🚺	8 🏶 :
🗰 Apps 👩 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft Offi 🐨 User:Adeloale 设 Centering in C 💶 (7) Tariq Rama	>>
aws Services → Resource Groups → ★ Ӆ vocstartsoft/user737082=adeloale → Globa	l 🕶 Support 🕶
Create bucket	-
General configuration	
Bucket name	
s3-mediadvices	
Bucket name must be unique and must not contain spaces or uppercase letters. See rules for bucket naming 🔀	
Region	
US East (N. Virginia) us-east-1	
Bucket settings for Block Public Access	
Public access is granted to buckets and objects through access control lists (ACLs), bucket policies, access point policies, or all. In order ensure that public access to this bucket and its objects is blocked, turn on Block all public access. These settings apply only to this buck	to ket
and its access points. AWS recommends that you turn on Block all public access, but before applying any of these settings, ensure that applications will work correctly without public access. If you require some level of public access to this bucket or objects within, you ca	your n
customize the individual settings below to suit your specific storage use cases. Learn more	
✓ Block <i>all</i> public access	
Turning this setting on is the same as turning on all four settings below. Each of the following settings are independent of one and	other.
 Block public access to buckets and objects granted through new access control lists (ACLs) S3 will block public access permissions applied to newly added buckets or objects, and prevent the creation of new public acc 	ess
ACLs for existing buckets and objects. This setting doesn't change any existing permissions that allow public access to S3 reso using ACLs.	urces
– 🔽 Block public access to buckets and objects granted through <i>any</i> access control lists (ACLs)	
S3 will ignore all ACLs that grant public access to buckets and objects.	
 Stock public access to buckets and objects granted through new public bucket or access point policies S3 will block new bucket and access point policies that grant public access to buckets and objects. This setting doesn't change existing policies that allow public access to 53 resources. 	any
Block public and cross-account access to buckets and objects through <i>any</i> public bucket or access point	
policies S3 will ignore public and cross-account access for buckets or access points with policies that grant public access to buckets an objects.	d
Feedback Services, Inc. or Its affiliates_All rights reserved.	Terms of Use



😑 S3 Management Console 🗴 📀 lb-webtiers-1540641179	.u × +			_ □	×
← → C 🗎 s3.console.aws.amazon.com/s3/buckets/s3-medi	advice/?region=us-east-1&tab=overview	\$ E	💿 👂 🔟 📀	=1 🌍	:
🗰 Apps 🔞 Grammarly 🧯 Microsoft Offi W User:Ade	loale 🌱 Organize dire 😵 Cen	ntering in C 🕻	🕽 (7) Tariq Rama		»
AWS Services - Resource Groups - 🖈		🗘 adeloalema	n 🕶 Global 🕶 Sup	oport 👻	
Amazon S3 → s3-mediadvice					-
s3-mediadvice					
Overview Properties Permissions	Management Access poi	nts			
Q Type a prefix and press Enter to search. Press ESC	to clear.				
L Upload + Create folder Download Ac	tions v	US East ((N. Virginia) 🛛 🕫		
			Viewing 1 to 2		
□ Name ▼	Last modified 🔻	Size 🔻	Storage class 🔻		J,
architecture_diagram.png	May 10, 2020 7:16:56 PM GMT+0100	646.3 KB	Standard		
cloudCCT2.png	May 10, 2020 7:18:06 PM GMT+0100	31.9 KB	Standard		
		<	Viewing 1 to 2		
Operations 0 In progress 2 Success 0 Error					-
🗨 Feedback 🔮 English (US) 🛛 🔅	2008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its affil	liates. All rights reserv	ved. Privacy Policy 1	erms of Use	

3.11 Caching with Amazon CloudFront

← → C ▲ C ↓ C ↓	»
Image: Apps Grammary Microsoft Office Vorganize dire Centering in C Image: Centering in Cen	*
Services × Resource Groups × 🔭 💭 adeloaleman × Global × Support ×	4
Step 1: Select delivery method Create Distribution	
Step 2: Create distribution Origin Settings	
Origin Domain Name s3-mediadvice.s3 amazonaws.com	
Origin Path	
Origin ID S3-s3-mediadvice	
Restrict Bucket Access Ves No	
Origin Custom Headers Header Name Value	8
	-
	-
Default Cache Behavior Settings	
Path Pattern Default (*)	
Viewer Protocol Policy HTTP and HTTPS Dedicated HTTPs	
Redirect FTP to FTPS OF FTPS	
Allowed HTTP Methods	-
Candhack () Ennlich///S) © 2000 2000 American Web Consisten for at the attilistics All distributions and Deliver Deliver	•

👔 AWS CloudFront Manage:	× +					_ □	×
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C \cong console.aws.a	mazon.com/cloudfront/home?regio	n=us-east-1#distributions:			० 🖈 🐔 🖸 🚨	C 🏶	:
👯 Apps 🙃 Grammarly 🚺	Microsoft Offi W User:Adel	oale 😵 Centering in C	💶 (7) Tariq Rama 🛛 Le Petit	Luneti 🗹 P	hilippe Paye 🖿 IDG Ap	ps	»
aws Service	s 👻 Resource Groups 👻	*	م vocstartso	ft/user737082=ade	eloale 🕶 Global 🕶 S	iupport 👻	
CloudFront	CloudFront Dis	tributions					-
Distributions	Create Distribution	Distribution Settings	elete Enable Disable		C 🗘	0	
What's new 🐺	Viewing : Any Delivery N	Method 🐱 Any State	*				
 Reports & analytics 	Delivery Method	ID	Domain Name	Comment	Origin		
Cache statistics	🔲 🚱 Web	E1BKRGQQMS6TUP	dc1d59pw6ccbz.cloudfront.net	-	s3-mediadvices.s3.amaz	onaws.com	
Monitoring							-
	•						•
🔍 Feedback 🔇 English	(US)	© 20	008 - 2020, Amazon Web Services, Inc. or its	s affiliates. All right	ts reserved. Privacy Policy	Terms of Use	



3.12 Cross-region disaster recovery

3.12.0.1 Data replication

Task 4

Proposed solution report

In this report, we explain the design of an architecture for a web application that will be hosted in the AWS. The design and solutions we provide are mainly based on the client's requirements but always keeping in mind the best practices from the AWS Well-Architected Framework.

In short, our goal is to propose the implementation of a secure and high available multitier architecture. In accordance with the current Medi-Advice environment, we designed an environment based on three tiers: Web Tier, App Tier, and Database Tier. To make our environment Highly Available, we have replicated the design in a second availability zone. In addition, as mentioned in the client's requirements, we will provide cross-region availability by replicating the design in another region and implementing a multi-region failover.

Below is presented a short but concrete review of the most important elements of our technical solution. In case further details are required at a particular point, we will provide links to the sections where more technical details of the proposal are provided. We also recommend to always review the Architecture diagram in Figure 2.1. This is without any doubt the best way to understand our solution.

- 1. Creating a VPC: A Virtual Private Cloud is an Amazon Service that will allow us to define a Virtual Networ:
 - ACL attached to th VPC: After creating a VPC, we will configure its ACL. All the subnets created inside the VPC will inherit the ACL associate with the VPC; unless a particular ACL is configured on a specific subnet. Security is one of the main concerns in the design since Medi-Advice will manage very sensitive medical information. Please see the ACL in figure 1.1.

2. Subnet architecture:

• **Primary region:** Ireland (eu-west-1):

- Availability zone 1: In our primary region, we will define a subnet architecture in a first AZ:
 - * **Public subnet 1** We need a subnet that has a direct connection to the Internet gateway. This is necessary because our servers will need Internet access for patching and updates. In this Subnet, we will place a NAT Gateway that will provide outbound Internet connection to the private subnets where the application will be hosted.
 - * **Private Web-Tiers subnet 1** In this layer, we will deploy our Web-Tiers servers. It is important to highlight that we won't lanch Instance in this subnet or any other public subnet. Instead, we will launch a **NAT Gateway** that will connect our Instance hosted in **private subnet** with the Internet Gateway.
 - * Private App-Tiers subnet 1 This tier will be in charge of the App-Tiers instances.
- Availability zone 2: Then, we will replicate the subnet architecture in a second AZ:
 - * Public subnet 2
 - * Private Web-Tiers subnet 2
 - * Private App-Tiers subnet 2
- 3. Defining Servers Security Groups: As an extra layer of security, We will configure strict Security groups that will only allow the necessary traffic. Please refer to Figure 1.3 if you want to review the security groups we will apply to our instances.
- 4. Launching a Web and App tiers instances and configuring the Web application: In this part we will create 2 base instances: one for the Web tier and another for the App tier. We will also install the packages we need and configure our web application.
- 5. Creating Amazon Machine Images for the Web-Tier and App-Tier instances: We will create an AMI from each of the 2 instances configured in the last step. These images will be used later for the Auto Scaling Group to create new instances in case more resources are needed.
- 6. Load Balancing: Two load balancers will be configured. One will distribute requests across the Web-tiers instance and the other across the App-tiers instances.
- 7. Auto Scaling: Two Auto Scaling Groups will be configured. One for the Web tier and the other for the App tier. They will launch or terminate instances automatically in response to the resources required by the application.
- 8. Database tier: We will manage our application's database using Amazon RDS. Amazon RDS is inherently highly available. Furthermore, by using Amazon RDS instead of a database hosted in an EC2 instance, we offload many operational and maintenance responsibilities. [AWS documentation (a)]
- 9. Storing Web-Accessible Content in Amazon S3: Static assets-content must be stored in Amazon S3 instead of in an EC2 instance. This is a good practice that provides benefits that will be described later in the corresponding section. [AWS Academy (2019b)]
- 10. Caching with Amazon CloudFront: The process of storing data in an intermediary location between the request and

the source is called caching. This process reduces cost and latency, so the requests are faster. [AWS Academy (2019b)] f

- 11. Cross-region disaster recovery: Our design will provide cross-region availability by replicating the entire environment in another region and implementing a multi-region failover with Amazon Route 53.
 - Data replication from our primary Amazon S3 bucket to the Secondary S3 bucket in the other region.
 - Data replication from our primary Amazon RDB to the Secondary Amazon RDB in the other region.

Bibliography

- AWS ACADEMY: ACA Module 3 LAB: Making Your Environment Highly Available, 2019a. Version A5L5. 3, 4, 7
- AWS ACADEMY : Academy Cloud Architecting (ACA) Module 07 Student Guide. Amazon Web Services, Inc., 2019b. Version 1.1.5. 38, 39
- AWS ACADEMY : Module 7: Designing Web Scale Media. Amazon Web Services, Inc., 2019c. 9
- AWS DOCUMENTATION : Amazon rds features, a. URL https://aws.amazon.com/rds/features/#ha. 38
- AWS DOCUMENTATION : Network acls, b. URL https://docs.amazonaws.cn/en_us/vpc/latest/userguide/vpc-network-acls.html.
- AWS DOCUMENTATION : Security groups for your VPC. Amazon Web Services, Inc., c. URL https://docs.aws. amazon.com/vpc/latest/userguide/VPC_SecurityGroups.html.